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You were born in Harlem?
Iwasbornin Harlembefore all of you, on Octobereighth,a Libra, actuallyin
Flower Hospital in Manhattan, and then was removed after several days to

Harlemby my parents.

Would you give your parents’ full names?

My mother’s name, Emily Phyllis Muir Greaves. My father’s, Hannibal Gil-
bert Garfield Wilburforce Greaves, more commonly known as Garfield
Greaves.

And they came to New York or were they born here?

Both parents came from the West Indies. My father by way of the now in-
famous Panama canal. He worked on the construction of the Canal under
General Goethals. Goethals was the army engineer in charge and my father
carried out his wishes with dispatch until he got sick of it and came tfo
America. My mother came from Jamaica, from Port Antonio.

Were either of them in the arts in any way?
My father used to play the guitarbut, unhappily, notlisteningto his father, he
came home late one night strumming the guitar up the path of
Harrises’villagein St. Lucy, Barbadosand when hearrived atthe doprstep of
hishouse, he was met by my grandfather who promptly took the gultar from
himand smashed it over his knee. My grandfather wasa very strict West In-
diangentlemanand brooked no indiscipline.

*You, it is rumored, began to draw at the age of four. Is that true? Have you ever gone
back to it?
Idrew continuously and obsessively from the age of f0}1r through sixteen or
seventeenand then leftitbehind and wentinto other things.

Inyour elementary school days do you remember any teachers who were very important

to shaping your life? . '
Ohyes. There wasa music teacher at Frederick DouglassJunior High Sch.ool
in Harlem, a man named Mr. Dixon. He and his wife were very su'pportl;re.
Youhave Brock Peters’ picture on the table there. Brock e%nd I werein the ghge
clubat Frederick Douglass and Mr. Dixon used to periodically inviteus tohis
houseand his wife would serve us teaand crumpets. Hewasa ve_rl)i,.ver}‘; i\:g-
portive person. My art teacher, Mrs. Sherwood, wasanother. V}\lh Yl?\iInC rhis,
whowasasculptor, took aninterestinmy work. WhenIwasatthe - F d % |
wasabout fourteen at the time, he brought me to Augusta Savage’s Fe keix;fl

Art Project on Lenox Ave. and I used to do sculpting down there, working

: ; i 9.
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withclay. Ialsodid pottery on the wheelat the Y.M.C.A. Ernest Crichlow was
alsooneof my art teachersat the Y.M.C.A.

I'was theyoungest personat the Augusta Savage artschool, which wasfor
adults. I had no business even being there but Artis decided that I had some
talentso he was going to bring me. One day Iwaskneading up my clay when
this woman came in and she seemed not to be dressed like the other women
were. I thought she had a housecoat on. Then Artis said, "Well, are weall
ready?" Everyonein the class said, "Yes." He said, "Allright, Miss So and So,
weareready to begin." Thislady takes off this kimono and she is stark naked.
Therelam, afourteen-year-old kid. What to do?!! Tjustcouldn’t evenlookat
thewoman. Itwasatrauma. Icame outofa very Christian, Pentecostal, West
Indian straitlaced family. And here was, in this room with this naked lady.
Artis realized my distress and he figured that the best way to deal with this
was to simply take me right to the center of the storm. I had wanted toleave
theroominitially. He said, "Bill,  want to make sure you get thisangleof the
body correctly. Come withme". He took meby thearmand took meupto this
lady. He said, "You see how herback is sloped like thisand herlegs?" Icould
hardly seethewomanIwasso shy! Well, anyway, that was my introductionto
sculpting, to live models. After that I became very sophisticated, very ur-
bane. I went back to 135th Street and Lenox Avenue where all my cronies
hungout, boasting, telling themabout thisnaked lady.

Was Norman Lewis there?

I'believe he was. Bob Blackburn was there [ think. I used to see him floating
throughandIthink Crichlow was floatingaround.

Do you have any specific memories of Augusta Savage?

NoIdon’t. I was only fourteen. Evervythj -
. . . ything was a blur other than William
i;tls a;:d Inoticed Blackburn because he had those thick glasses even then.
ter that I was selected as one of the seventy-five best child artists in New

Did you come in contact with Ronald Joseph
3 eph by any chance?
Community Art Center and was a mentor to Bop B%gkgsffz. He was at the Harlem

Was it your own idea to 80 to City College ang try engineering?

Iwouldn’ i i

interest:dtis:l}),é?:t ;t was fmsted uponmeby my father. Actually I wasreally

Do nogt tg ;ztxst but my father thought that wasa very frivolous

That was g b ot to encouraged.. He kept insisting that I learn a trade.
g thing in the West Indian community at that time. "Boy, you



William Greaves 57

started off withabang and then my enthusiasm tapered off. Partly becausel
thought I would soon be drafted in the army and partly because a friend of
mine was dancing with a group that I saw rehearse quite a bit. Cleante
Desgraves, my friend’s sister, and Josephine Premice and some other girls
whose names I have forgotten, were in the group. I sort of thought that
Josephine was cute. Belle Rosette was a wonderful Haitian dancer and this
was her group. I was always in and out of the Desgraves’ house as a kid.
Professor Marc Desgraves, Sr. was a French teacher. He used to teach hisson
Marg, Jr., myself, Josephine Premice, and some other kids Haitian history
everySaturday morninginhishouse. Some of thekids werein BelleRosette’s
dance group. I think Josephine Premice and my friend, Marc Desgraves, Ir.
had a crush on each other. I used to observe them dance with Belle Rosette’s
group and then Josephine and Marc went over to dance with a man named
Asadata Dafora. It was at that juncture that I was drawn into this because [
used to like dancing anyway, social dancing. Dafora’s grouphad some pretty
girlsinitand I started dancing with Asadata Dafora. We danced at various
concerts, Carnegie Hall, Town Hall and so forth. From therel wentinto Pearl
Primus’s dance group and danced with her group at Town Hall, Carnegie
Hall, Madison Square Garden, the Roxy Theatre. After the Roxy engagement
in1944 0r 1945, that was the end of my dancing career.

You learned your dancing by doing it with these groups?

Yes. Whathappened was thatIalready had a feel fordancing. The Lindy Hop
and all that foolishness at the Savoy, the Renaissance Ballroom, the Golden
Gate. Atthe Harlem Y.M.C.A. they used to have basketball dances. Outofall
that there came a feel for movement and it was very easy for Asadata to take
that and convert it to these very African movements. Butit was with Pearl
Primus that I really got formal training, I also studied dance with a woman
she worked with named NonaSherman.

Was Gordon Heath narrating the Pearl Primus program?

Yes, as a matter of fact Gordon was the narrator at the event at the Roxy
Theater. Gordonis very dignified, so he broughtall this digr.\ity to theevent.
Hespokeover the microphone on African history and one thing anfi another,
and then the group came out and we did our dancing. Justat thattime Owen
Dodson, the poet, was doing a play at the American Negro Theatre. It was
1944 0r’45, right?

Yeah. Primus was '44. You're right. .
Soitwas1944. Gordonsaid, "Listen, haveyouever acted before?" AndI §a1dl1
"Acting--Idon’tknow anythingaboutacting, other than highschoolacting.
Now that I think of it, I remember a moment in'a play thatI had acted in in
junior highschool. Injuniorhighschool Mr. Dixon had meinaplay becgulsc?l
apparently spoke Spanish pretty well at that time.- 1 hz?d won.the rlne Iél n
Spanishinschool. So they gave me thispartto playinthis Spanishplay, ‘can
stillremember it now, I don’t know what the circumstanc.es were, but some-
onehad cheated somebody outof something, and thelastline of theplay \l,yas,
"Banderos! Esso eslos que son” or something likethat. And thatwasmy }:ne.
This was the big graduation play that we put on, and at the en.d of it, e;’e
comes the curtain line, and I said, "Banderos! Esso es".... which actually
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sounded like 5.0.S. because I forgot the rest of the line! I couldn’t remember
the rest of it, and all the Spanish-speaking students and Spanish-studying
studentsat Frederick DouglassJunior HighSchoolin Harlem, roared! There
werekidsin the graduating class that knew that I had blown it. AndIwasso
ashamed, it wasjust terrible! Idon’t think I acted after thatin school.

Well, Gordon persuaded me to go up to the American Negro Theatre and
audition fora partin Owen Dodson’s Garden of Time. It was a funnysitua-
tion -- there was a whole room full of people there, all these actors, theyall
were very professional. I thought they were very professional and I wasa
greenhorncomingin there. But they gaveme thescript toread, and I read this
partbutlhad no senseof whatit was; they would give me the cueandIwould
answer them,and myacting wasjustsimplebecauselhad nosenseof whatac-
tingwas, yousee. AndIgotthe part,notonlydidIgetthe part, butapparently
Iwasatthattime so naturaland so untouched by acting systems, techniques
and procedures, that I was what you would call "a natural,” and I walked
away with all thereviews. IThad a royal flushofall thesereviews, all theNew
York critics, The New York Times wrote wonderful things. And I thought,

mgz?;}i\t hactl prob.lems){ but "the worst wag William Greaves"!!!
einteresting thing was thatIdon’t believel really learned my lesson,

: .- -hadauditioned again. There was abi thing
called the John Golden Auditionsin New York, an%l about fifteen hungred or

andopenedthepla in Chj i
[played thgo poF] aynd I Icago,and again, | thoughthaSjusta terrificactor.

closetheen P (Maybe the apparently wag justdreadful because they had to

_Gee, asamatter of fact, [ think Pay]
Nice man. Irememper going to the h
ll;as had a situation notun]

ackstageand probably s

Oljgbe?ox;\;ame tosee the show, hewasa
. eot...Margaret Goss Burroughs. She
alil;etl(;lﬁtch-?ll"lops in Chicago. Margaret Ggss came

erself,"Helookslikea decent youngman,he
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probably needs some guidance.” Margaret tookalikingtomeandinvited me
to her house for various parties and events that they were having during the
period that I was in Chicago. Paul Robeson showed up and he never men-
tioned the play to me. Butafter thatIthinkIgot better and better asanactor.
Butitwasa very bumpy beginning, shall we say.

Well, you must have, because you played in Finian's Rainbow.
Yes. That’sright.

And Lost in the Stars.
Yeah.

Now, at the same time, you began to act in film.
Yes.

1 have here the first film, The Fight Never Ends with Joe Louis.

Actually,Thad worked on a number of films before that butin smaller parts.
There wasastudio,aplacecalled The SuntanStudios,and it wasrunbyavery
close friend of Paul Robeson who was a major football player, a man called
FritzPollard, who was abignamein that gameatone time. think he wentto
Brown University. He had this casting agency called Suntan Studios, which
used to supply all the various black films that were being made with extras
andbitplayers. Iwas sentby himto these variouscompaniesand] becam.e in-
volved in these different productions. Idon’t know what the productions
were. AllIknew was thatI wasonasetand thelights wereon.

And then finally Igot this partin The Fight Never Ends; William Al(?xrimder
was the producer, Joseph Lerner was the director, and Joe Louiswasinitand
he wasamajor figure init. Iplayed ayoung hoodlum named Franky whowas
badly influenced by my brother or somethinglike that (Ive forgotten all the
detailsof it.) Harold Tillman played my brother. That wasmy firstrole, you
know.

And Ruby Dee was in that?
Well, I keep hearing that Ruby was init. I don’t know. Ican’t remembef. I
think I saw the film once. I’ve seen Ruby’s name on some of the promotion
material.

You know, it may be part of the things that get written down that are not true. .
Yeah. There was the Tyler Film Collection. Doyouknow a})qut the Collection
downin Dallas, Texas? Thereisamandown there, Dr. Wllllamlgnes, who 1s
the head of the Southern Methodist University Southwest Medla Atrchlvis.
One day, someone called him up on the phone and said, "Listen, Id\{e g% ii
whole warehouse here of films up in Tyler, Texas. It’s all dusty and léty_ u
there’s tons of this stuff up here. I'm gonna throw itout, but 1 flgurg . Z‘:ﬁg
youpeopleare in the filmbusiness, the University mightbe 1nte;gst§uét ot
went over there, opened the door to this warehouse, and all this ¢ films
flyingaround and there were these cases and casesand cans and canso | d
Dr.Jones whistled and said, "Wow!" He knew they were thecrownjewe Zag
hehad them removed to Southern Methodist University. In this whOLe rZO 4
of work were these black films that were done durir}g the 1930s anfd t belicits.
Andinthatgroup were three of them that Ihadrolesin. Itgotalotofpu y
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in the media about six years or seven yearsago. This big nationwide jewelry
combinedown in Texas called Zale, sponsored a big event that celebrated the
findingof thesefilmsand the restoration ofa very important part of black his-
tory. They flew me down there to participateinthishistorical eventand]was
metattheairportin this long, white Cadillacdriven by this white chauffeur, I
said, "Now I havearrived.” To be met by a white chauffeur in a white Cadillac
in the deep South, this was true progress! I was taken all over Dallas and
wined and dined and feted. It wasa very auspicious time. Ossie Daviscame
downand Harold Tillman, who played my brotherin the film, and wasnowa
judge in Houston, and he and I'reminisced. But I don’t recall our talking
about Ruby being in the film. But] did see her name in connection with it,s0
shemusthavehada partinit.

In "48 and °49, I'm sure, one of these films was A Miracle in Harlem.
Oh, yeah.

And another was Souls of Sin, which Powell Lindsay directed. Is there anything that
You would like to say about either of them?

Yes,Iwould. Souls of Sin actually was a very charming film thatI had done.
William Alexander was the pProducer, and he was the quintessential inde-

ote the script about two characters, one

. 0 was the young black man in Harlem
trying desperately to gettothetop of the world through crime, and the other

was thi in"

was t}?oi;%ltrt\}t‘;};ﬁumpk;n Alabam’," who Playedtheguitarand sangandno

o = eev;l/(.)'zld everlb"ecome anythingand then heends upbecom-

and southern X Yb abam’,"and wag obliged to putonasouthernaccent
mbehavior, Fropx the aqtingpointofview, itwasa nicechal-



William Greaves 61

some 1,200 theaters throughout the country at the time. I don’t know how
much everyone here knows about America at that period, but black people
couldn’tsitin the regular orchestra of white theatres throughout mostof the
country; they had to situp in the black section. Sorather than subject oursel-
ves to that kind of indignity, we catered to films that were made by blacks
about black subject matter that had a degree of dignity and went to these
theatresin theblack community. This film played that circuit.

The other film, A Miracle in Harlem, was at that time considered a very
prestigious film because it was the first film that was done to so-called "Hol-
lywood standards,"butit wasdoneindependently by the Goldbergbrothers;
they had acompany called Herald Pictures. It wasdone at the intercession of
theNAACP who were very concerned with the image of black people at that
timeand aggressively tried to have some sort of impact. It wasrightafter the
war and everyone swore that America was going to become the truly
democratic society that all the war propaganda and the United Nations
propaganda suggested. So the Goldbergs financed this film,and I played the
romantic lead and Sheila Guyse played the part of the girl. The biggestrole
was played by Hilda Offley who played the grandmother. Juanita Hall,
Stepin Fetchitand Monte Hawley werealso init.

Stepin Fetchit was justabsolutely wonderful in this production. Whenyou
sawhimin the context of the total black society, you said, "Gee whiz!" Thisis
onegoodactor, it’s too bad thathe had tobeisolated. That Hollywood withits
Nazi master-race mentality could reach into the black community and just
extractthatone archetype to the exclusion of others, so that whatyougotwas
adistorted view of Black America. Butseeing himinhis real habitat, he was
wonderful. He was a nice guy, very simple, dignified, and clearly a wpnder-
ful actor who had been exploited and misused by those fascists in Hol-
lywood.

That same year, 1949, you had that film, Lost in the Stars, and then you did Lost
Boundaries with Canada Lee and Mel Ferrer.

Yes. That’s right.

Any memory of that?
Well, I have quite a memory of that movie because I gota calllast week fron;
Keene, New Hampshire, where the film had been shot, from a Professort(:
film, Dr.Larry Benaquist, who has decided to call together the trll?e of all the
people who worked on Lost Boundaries forty yearsago. Heishavingthis l?lg
get-togetherin celebration of the forty-year annive::ls,flr%'(Of ﬁgig:::ndanes
since,apparently, nothing else that big hashappenedin ee 0
Fortyp)?ears ago (actuagfly, I think it was 1948), Louis Derod‘,ement;ei“
eminent documentary filmmaker, who then had been producing a y

i Iso had
opul ies i alled The March of Time, a
popular newsreel series in the theatres ¢ e Mo Ninety o had

done many feature films. Boomerang was one; )
Street, Walk East, Beacon and the Whistle and The Roman Spring of Mrs.
Stone were some of his films. omeother source to

Heraised the money through the Reader’sDigestands
doafilmonatrue-life story of ablack family livingin New Englang“g:r(i)‘:s;e
very lightskinned and were passing for white. When the war Clil e com:
thefather, who wasthe doctorforthetown, decided thathewou
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mission in the navy. In the process of doing a background investigation of
himthenavy discovered that he was black, and they sent this intelligencein-
vestigator to see him, and he asked the doctor in this very dramatic, critical
moment, "Doctor, do you have Negroblood in your veins?" And Mel Ferrer,
who played the doctor, had to confess, meaculpa.

Itwasat the time, a very powerful filmand it was very, very successful and
ranonBroadway forsixmonthsatthe Astor Theatre. And interestingly,atthe
time that it was on Broadway, I was also playing the romantic lead in A
Miracle in Harlem on Broadway and I had a play that I was featured inon
Broadway, Lostin the Stars. SoI had these three things goingandIwassortof
bouncing around Very arrogantly, I guess. There were these wonderful
episodes of very attractive young women chasing me around Broadwayand
me fleeing for my life!!

Great.

Canada Lee was in this film and it was wonderful. Canada was justa wonder-
fulguy. Itwasa very good experienceand I'm looking forward to goingback

wasamoviestarand did anumber of films with Debbie Reynolds)and Susan
Douglassare coming.

But the real-life doctor that the film was about justdied thisyear, at the age
of eighty-four.

In 1950, if I have it right, you returned to film school gt City College.
Where’dyougetall this information?

We have spies. Yoy really left acting a5 Your major thing. Like yoy say, here you are on

Broadway being chased women, " ]
in anothey yomg cha by + You've got three shows, and zippo! You turn and go

h
burg and reading aboyt Nat Turner 'an’gh%] nevas } S A i

Africans who were r - eénmark V, -
e ebel] ; , esey and these ex
Thls'sou"ageolls." 'Ng against this Nonsense called "slavery." I said,

The thing th

at real}
Y turned me off was Jose Ferrer ang Gloria Swanson.
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They had cast me in a play, I didn’t know what my part was, and they said,
"You'vegota partin this play,”"and Isaid, "Fine." SoIshowed up atrehearsal,
and they had me playing this Pullman car porter, "Yuck, yuck, yuck" stuff. I
was supposed tolaugh and say, Boss"and thatkind of foolishness, and I'said,
"Thisisoutrageous!" SoIsaid to myself, the only thing left formeto doisto
get behind the camera, because unless we take control of this medium and
start making these movies, we're going to be victims of this kind of
psychological warfareinterminably.

And it's still being perpetuated, unhappily, by Hollywood, using some of
ourmostgifted people. Anyway, that wasthe thingthat veered meaway from
being in front of the cameras and onstage to the study of film, and also, there
was the whole McCarthy era, which was full of a lot of foolishness and vi-
ciousnessagain. We had to say, "Tamnota member of this, andIdidn’tdo that
anddid notassociate with thisperson.” AndIliked CanadaLee, Iliked alotof
other wonderful people, and I just didn’t like that kind of intimidation. So
that was one of the reasons I left the country in 1952, after Istudied filmmak-
ingat City College and a place called The New Institute for Film.

When!tried to getinto the industry here, 1 absolutely couldn’t get support
inthewhitemovieindustry exceptfromMr. Derochement, who usedtoletme
hangoutinhiseditingroomsasan apprentice. But other than that,Icouldn’t
get into the industry. I was really forced, if I wanted to continue in the in-
dustry, to leave the country. I considered going to Cinecitta, which is the
movie studio in Rome where Vittorio DeSica had a group of young people
working. I had to decide to go either there or to go to Canada, and I chose
Canada because it was close by and a friend of mine, Lou Applebaum, who
was the composer on Lost Boundaries, was up at the National Film Board of
Canada. [ wrote to him and he introduced me to Donald Mulholland, the
head of production at the National Film Board of Canada.

lapplied to theJohn Hay Whitney Foundationfora scholarship qnd'at t'hat
time they were giving fellowships to people who were inter.ested in singing
and dancing. They weren’t interested in the black presencein the masscom-
munication media. They were only interested in supporting blaclf people
whosangand danced. So they turned me downbutIdecidedIwas going togo
to Canada anyway. I went up and got odd jobs in Ottawa,‘SCI’Ubbmg flqors,
washing windows, whileI wasat the studio as an apprentice. They d‘ec1ded
that I was so committed that they took me on staff and from that point on I
worked in production, firstas a "go-fer," thenup through the differentskills
infilmmaking.

Were there any other black filmmakers in the Film Board up there at that tzme?. .

Yes. He was Canadian, Ron Alexander. He wasalaboratory t'echmcmn who
then moved over to the sound department asa sound recordist. He was the
onlyone,

Tell me about your involvement with music.
My uncle gave me a saxophone which my father, [ believe, pawneq be:ausei
we were in the middle of the Depression and we didn’t have anythmdgho i:t
then. So that saxophone had to go. He himself played the trumpetda.nt. ncetion
me play his trumpet. [ began studying trumpet later a.nd e thi,l-;s lDaviS
of having begun my trumpeting career at the same time as Mr. Miles .
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He and I studied with the same teacher. He became Miles Davis and, asa
musician, I becamea disaster. Amannamed Charles Colin wasourteacher. |
took up trumpeting toa pointbutIdidn’tlike theidea of constantly bending
my lips on the mouthpiece. Ifound it very discomforting and I decided that
I'd justas soon write musicasplay it. So I started writing music, that’s how|
gotintosongwriting.

You've written one hundred songs?
Yes.

And they are mostly in what genre?

They are popular songs. My stuff was recorded by Buddy Johnson, Arthur
Prysock, Al Hibbler, Sy Oliver, Eartha Kitt and Donna Hightower. Atone
pointIreally wanted tobeasongwriter but gotsoinvolved with acting, Ileft
thatbehind. Ididn’t pursue songwriting after 1952, when I think I wrote my
last song. It was a song that Eartha Kitt recorded called African Lullaby,
whichmy wife, Louise, told me she heard upinCanada, before we met. Itwas
ontheotherside of Ce SiBon. Itsold a million recordsand I gota freeride.

How did you meet Louise and when did you meet?

Iwas tggching_acting inMontrealand Louise arrived. This exquisitelylovely
apparitionarrived inmy acting groupanddespite my firm determinationnot
togetmarried, we got married.

You were there as a film editor yntil 1960?

Was your ﬁrft film as a director 4 documentary, The Emergency Ward in 19587
No. Thaddirectedacouple ofother filmsbefore that,i.e.,. workingon'myOWﬂ

filmrather than sim ly work ;
editor. One ilm did callod utsioy 1o e e €15¢'s ilm a3 an ocitor or sound

: utt ; ;
do with teeth. It was g nice Ii IngItStraight wason maloclusion. Ithadto

ttle film. . ThenIdig another filmon ecology, it
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tive,onecanlook atitfrom the perspective of physics, the perspective ofart,
etc. [t wasgoing to be an experimental film,

Asamatter of fact, Emergency Ward is going to be shown this summer be-
cause the Film Board is celebrating fifty years of existence and there is going
to be a whole round of documentaries from the National Film Board at the
Museum of Modern Artand I think that Emergency Ward will be one of the
filmsthat they willshow. That was madein 1958.

Did you ever work with Norman MacLaren?

Ididn’t work with NormanbutNorman and I were in the same unit. The Film
Board was divided into about five basic units. Each unit had a particular
portfolio or mandate. One did government sponsored films, another did
science films. Our unit was the creative unit and we did all kinds of artistic
typefilms. Norman wastheleadinglightinourunit. Avery brilliant, humble
guy. He was really a tour de force in genius and humility. A kind of an
Einstein-type presence.

That film, Emergency Ward, was seen by Shirley Clark and did that have something to
do with your coming back to the U.S.?

Yes. Shirley Clarke saw Emergency Ward. She was very impressed with it.
Actually I had already come back to the U.S. before I met Shirley, to work at
the UN. The film section of the United States Information Agency was
headed by George Stevens, Jr. This wasall during the wholeKennedy period.
Shirley started ranting and raving to Georgeabout my filmand shesaid tome
that when George learned that I was black he just freaked out because he
wanted to have some black creative people involved in the film section out-
put. It was a wonderful opportunity for him to put substance into the
agency’s program and he did ask me to do a film for him. I was atthe U.N.at
thattimeand I had toleave my jobtodo this film. Wesetupourowncompany
to do this film and it was a wonderful opportunity for me too. Then we did
twoorthree films for them after that.

Was that in 1964? .
Yes. We first did a film called Wealth of aNation. It was about freedprn oflp-
dividual expression but it started out by being a film abqut dissent in
America. This was in 1964 and the deeper we got into this subject, the more
controversial it became. We had people like Madeline Murray, who advlo-
cated banning prayerin the public school system, and v:.arlous othgr peop e.
Then the USIA realized that they couldn’t do that film without gettingintoa
lotofhot water with Congress. They decided thatthe film they were reallyin-
terested in wasa film on freedom of individual expression, whlc;h is whe;t we
did. Itbecame very popular. Several years laterwedid anothef filmfort ;!m,
which I think is the best film we did for them. It was on.the First World 1e.s-
tival of Negro Art which was the event that took placein Dak.ar{ Senega 112
1966. Leopold Senghor was the president. You had many prestigious Il)1eOP

there suchas Duke Ellington, Leonard De Paur, Langston Hughes, Kat cle)r}ne
Dunham, Alvin Ailey, Frederick O'Neal. Aimee Cesaire and A11(1>1url\xe'E .1(;1:\
werethereand quitea numberof other distinguished peoplefromthe Alric
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Diaspora. They congregated in Senegal and celebrated the re-emergence of
the African presencein world history and civilization.

And you were there as a one-man camera crew?

Yes. The USIA called us up and said, "Something is going on over therein
West Africa. Why don’t you take a camera over and shoot this and giveus
some newsreel footage." Iwentoverand when I realized whatit wasl began
screaming at the top of my voice that we needed much more footage to make
this film. This needed a major production. Thiswasa major historical event.
It wasnotanewsreel event. The Russians were there and they had a twenty-
mancrew! Theltalianshada largecrew! The Belgians, the French, everybody
was there! And the Americans had only me. Actually, I had a French
cameraman and myself. I trained the young Senegalese driver who was as-
signed to me to take sound and he took to it like a duck to water. Igotasecond
camera that Icould operate myself so I was co-camera as well. We made this
filmwitha three-man crew.

The Russians were making the official film of the festival. But when the
Senegalese authorities saw the film that we had done they turned away the
Russian version and used our version; our version had an empathy and a
stronger sense of identification with the event. | used the sense of Langston
Hughes’s poem, The Negro Speaks of Rivers and the phrasing of that poem

What does that footage look Iike?
No, I'm reciting the poem i i
over hisshoulder. Wre)see h.ilile > walking along the shoreline with his coat

lateron withD i .
the most - 3 ukeEllington. me
mostpopular film for the USIA i Africaforatleast tger?;e;l:alfw:s?icl\iar-

tiniquel ;
an d(} sioifrteﬁet;reigi\ StéloV\;lAImee Cesaire who ig NOw mayor of Fort de France
Imand hewag absolutely delighted, he hadn’t seen

it. Ibelieve we senthim a vi i
video of it. j
recently onthe bug and we talked aboﬁtsﬁi?;et;?;gftfad saw Alvin Aleyiest

Is ke reciting the poem?

How did b ;
You become the execytiye producer and 8et involved with Black Journal?
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Wedid anhourand a half film special about the black middle class called
StillaBrother, whichIdid incollaboration with Bill Branch. Thatfilmwasan
attempt to show that black people were making strides professionally, cul-
turally, psychologically, because it wasrightat the height of riots and urban
disorders. We did this film on the black middle class to track their mental
mechanisms and how they were dealing with this business of the social ad-
justmentand transformation of American society through protest. Theblack
people on the streets were not confused at all about which way America
should go. But there seemed to be a lot of confusion and misidentification
among the black middle class or the Black Bourgeoisieas E. Franklin Frazier
called them. They had all kinds of psychiatric pathologies as well as frustra-
tions and realizations that while they had the income of the white middle
class, inpointof fact, that’sall they had. Alltheseissues werelooked at andin
particular, the issue of their ongoing mental enslavement in America. Even
though slavery had ended in 1865 the black middle class was still mentally
enslaved.

What were they doing about that? The network, NET (National Education-
al Television), felt it was very radical and they didn’t know whether they
should putitontheair. Butevents were movingso rapidlyatthattime thatby
thetime they were ready to putiton theairitsynchronized very well with the
emerging middle-class participationin the civil rights revolution.

Outof the Kerner Commission on Civil Disorders came therealization that
oneofthefactorsinvolved in theriotsand the destabilization that was taking
place in America, fostered by the Afro-American response to American
racism, was the fact that black people were not properly revealed in the
media. Themedia was distortingourimage, stereotypingus whengvex" they
showed usand most of the time we did nothaveaccess toor substantive input
inthe media. The country did notknow who we wereor what we were, what
wewanted, whatour concerns were. The black community waseven unable
totalk toitself through the electronic media. )

Sothe Carnegie Endowment, taking thisline of thinking, setaboutdoinga
whole series of research studies and they, in conjunction with the Ford .Foun-
dationm putup money foranational televisionshowon theblackexperience.
NET approached me to be the co-host with Lou House who later became
knownasWalli Sadiq, they approached thetwo of us. They chose mebecause
of the success of Still a Brother which had been nominated for an Emmy ax'xd
had won the first prize at the American Film Festival. They had a white
producerinitially, Al Perlmutter, but after twoinstallments of the Black Jour-
nalseriesthere wasa palacerevoltby the black staffled by Kent Garrett, Char-
lesHobson, St. Clair Bourne and others who all felt that the show should Ee
black controlled. They all agreed that I should be the one to tgke over as :1 e
executive producer because of my experience in film production 1n§ana 3{
withwork on over eighty films under my belt, and so I took over anf' “;e par

i e
out the show every month. We were nominated for the Emmy the firstye

and we won it the second year.
Did you win it for a specific show or just a program?

For the series itself. It was a very nice experi
producer-directors on the show, "Thisisthebes

ence. 1 used to tell the other
ttime of yourlifebecauseyou
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arenever goingto getanothersituation in which you will be so protected and
willhave thecreative freedomyou are enjoying now," bothideologicallyand
artistically. St. Clair Bourne and most of the othersrealized later on that this
was a great period. That show became the flagship show for a number of
other local black television shows all over the country. They were modeled
after thatshow. LikeItIsistheonly showIknow of today thatremindsmeof
Black Journal. However, GilNoble does not have the kind of budget that we
were working with that would permit him to send crews out. We had Stan
Lathan, Kent Garrett, Tony Batten, Madeline Anderson, Lou Potter, St. Clair
Bourne, Bob Wagoner, Horace Jenkins, Jimmie MacDonald, Leroy McLucas,
all these people moving about the country and around the world. Wesenta
crew to Vietnamtodoa filmon the black soldier and another crew to Ethiopia
todoafilmonEthiopian history.

Allofthese various youngpeople were actually developed into filmmakers
on that show. None of them had any real experience in filmmaking so they
had to develop within that show. We had a wonderful production coor-
dinator named Peggy Pinn. Under Peggy we set up the Black Journal train-
ing school and we used to bring in young talented black and Hispanic kids
and train themas filmmakers. Anumber of the filmmakers who are function-
ing now in the industry came through that program which later became
knownas the Educational Television Schoo].

Also at Black Journal we called a conference after we had been going for

localities fromall over the country to Racine, Wisconsin. We gotsomemoney
from the Ford Foundation and we discussed the problems of the black
presencein the media,theblack shows, various methodologies by which we
could enhance and increase our presence and influence in the media and we

What year did you leave the shoy?
In1970.

gxtlho ufre }iome of the film producers that came oyt of that?
]ezzingtjii?, St. Clair Bourne, Kent Garrett, Madelj A
,Jimmy MacDonald, Wi I CLacas oy Horace

BabatundeHoratio Jones. tiam Gaddis, Leroy McLucas, Osborn Smith,
Any women?

Yes. i
es. Madeline Anderson, AngelaFontanez and Hazel Bright
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What was the budget you had to work with?
Ourbudget was $500,000a year, it could have been amillion, maybe.

Now your own business, which you were doing at the same time and are still doing. You
have made, written and produced around two hundred documentaries?

Idon’tknow how many documentaries we have done at this pointbutlknow
I'had done eighty at the Film Board and we did roughly about a hundred of
these film segments that were for Black Journal and we did something close
toahundred outof our own company.

Four ayear?
Yes. Somethinglike that.

Your company is twenty-two years 0ld?
Twenty-five years old. We set up the company in 1964 and we did produc-
tions free lance; then we wereincorporated in 1968 or 1969.

This is a long life for a company that does that kind of intense work with you being in-
volved in every shot.

Yesitisand if we are not careful we will be out of business this year. Making
movies is one of the most treacherous, most costly, most frightening
enterprises in its financial aspects. Oneis constantly being confronted with
coststhat you did not budget for. My definitionofan independent produFer
is someone who is about to go bankrupt. One day Louise and [ were going
aboutmerrily doing our workand ouraccountant arrived and said, "I wantto
talk to the both of you." We went into our screening room. Hesaid, "Shut the
door." Very somberly he said, "I think you are going bankrupt. You are, in
fact, bankrupt. What do you want to do?” I said, "Well, we are just going to
chargeahead.” That’s what wedid. That was 1970.

In 1980 you were elected to the Black Filmmakers Hall of Fame. Was that specifically for
documentary or for long life in the film business?
Ithink more forlonglife. Thereisa terrificattritionrate in theindustry. For
example, we purchased three editing machines in 1971. We mac.ie a cinema
verite feature film with Muhammad Ali and Joe Frazier that required having
multiple cameras, so we had to have these machines that display all these
camerasthatareused to perceiveareal lifemoment simultaneously.
After we finished that film we said, "Listen we’ve got three film editing
machines, what do we need them for?" So we took the Yellow Pages and did
thislaundry list of all the film producing companies inNew Yorkand wesent
out"For Sale” cards to all the producers, about one thousand. Then we sold
one machine. Two or three years later we said, "Let’s do another mailing to
sell this other machine,” because we had more financial problems. We had
made carbon copies of the lists, sowe took the nextpage and stuck the labt‘eclls
onallthese envelopesand we gotbackalmostone halfof these cards that salh /
"No longer at this address." Then a couple of years later we hac.i to sell the
third machine and we got back practically the wholelist. .There is a tremen-
dous turnover of companies and entrepreneurs in the film 1r}dustry- N
Itissoincredible that you donot dare tolook at the statistics. If youlooka
the statistics you’d go out of business. It is one of the most high risk areas.
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There was a fellow named Alan Trustman, I think, who was a lawyer. He
wrote an article ten years ago in a film magazine in which he discusses the
filmbusiness and he said that the odds at the gaming tables at Las Vegasare
better thenthey are forfeature film production success. I think the oddsatthe
gamingtablesare36to1whereasin thefilmindustryit’s substantially higher
thanthat.

You went to India and China for a film festival. What was it?

It was called Black American Cinema and this was a whole section that was
part of the International Film Festival in New Delhi. It was comprised of
twenty films. Ten documentaries and ten features. I was the head of the
delegationthat wasinvited to India by the governmentofIndiaand theIndo-
U.S.SubcommissiononEducation and Culture. I wasasked by bothof these
entities to make the choice of the films and the selection of the people who
would come with us. We took Cicely Tyson, Ruby Dee, Ivan Dixon, Michelle
fa;lfinson, and Donald Bogle who was our "resident" film scholar, withusto

ndia.

We met with the press and showed our films at the festival and did a lotof
telev.xsmn appearances and interviews. After the festival was over in New
D(?lhl we were sent by the government of India to Bombay, Calcutta and
Trlvandr}lm inKerala, in the south. It was extremely successful. TheIndians
Teally enjoyed having usand we enjoyed being there. Cicely and Ruby were
Justwonderful handling themselves with themedia.

.After t}}e tour the government of India asked me to do a workshop at the
FilmInstitutein Puna, which1did, and after that | went to China. The United

competitiondue to the large population
They really know a lotaboutss ;

twentiethcentury.

Did you ever meet Martin, Luther King, Jr.?

ImetMartin L i irty th —

R lWe l\l/:}elfé If<1mig’ Jr. thirty three-thousand feet above the earthinan
ying down to Atlanta and | was very moved by his

capacity t
pac’y toabsolutely focus on you;, Helooked atyou with a kind of radar, X-



William Greaves 71

Iam told, that at these sessions in African history I took at the Ethiopian
Library in Harlem, which became the Charles E. Seifert Library, conducted
by Hansberry, that Malcolm X used to show up periodically. At thattimel
didn’t know him. It was 1950, ’51. I was told by the head of the library, Taiyi
Seifert, that he used to come to the sessions. It’s possible that he came after1
leftand went to Canada. I certainly don’trecall everseeing him.

Could you give us an overview of your relationship with Sidney Poitier and Julian
Mayfield?

Sidney and I go back to the very early yearsat the American Negro Theatre.
(Actually,Iwas therebefore him.) Then we werebothina play called Freight
directed by a man named John O’Shaughnessy. We got toknow eachotherat
that time. Sidney and I used to hang out all up and down the streets of Har-
lem. Two of our favorite restaurants were The Ritz on 136th Street and
Seventh Avenue, and Jenny Lou’s which was the place everybody wenttoon
135thStreetand Seventh Avenue. Jenny Lou’s wasfor realand wasowned by
astraightahead, very funky, down-home woman named Jenny Lou. Shewas
an Earth Mother. She made the most incredible bacon and eggs, ham and
eggs, biscuits and home fries. This lady was outrageous! Duke Ellington,
Louis Armstrong, everybody atone time or another came to Jenny Lou’sbe-
cause she was open all night. Sidney and I and other actors used to go there
and have tea and toast because we couldn’t afford anything else!! Jenny
Lou’s wasaround the corner from the American Negro Theatresowe used to
allgo there after the theatre was over. If we werereally flush withmoney we
would order some baconand eggs.

Atthat time Sidney considered me something of hisidol. He sort of looked
up to me because my career was launched before his. Of course, Sidney has
since gone on to become my idol. We occasionally reminisce about that
period. As a matter of fact, he married my girlfriend, Juanita, so we really
knew each other quite well. Wehave talked a number of times over the years
aboutthe possibility of doingsomething togetherbutThavenever re?allybeen
able to come up with something that was sufficiently attractive to him.

Julian Mayfield, of course, was a very gifted young actor w'ho beFame a
writer; Julian had the young juvenilelead and Thad the second juvenilelead
in Lost in the Stars. I also understudied Julian. We toured around the
country, and as young actors the world was stretching out in front qf usand
we thought that we were going to become major stars zimd all. ]uhan'thgn
wenton to become very interested in the socialand political aspects oflifein
America, butitdidn’t really get fully articulated until after Lostin the Stars.
Hethen wentover to Ghanaand Ididn’t seehim too much after that. Idid see
him when he was on his way to Ghana. He came up to Cana.da. Wehad great
fun. We were a very good group of young people, 1 thir}k, in tl?at we stimu-
lated each other. We really challenged each other’sintelligenceinone wayor
another. I think that out of it came, not only a consensus of hoyv we mightre-
lateto the media and to America, butalsoa kind of individuation whereeach
oneofusrealized more and more how individually viable we were. y
twasagood timein America,anyway, because Americawasona derrfw}c\rat I.Ci
roll at that time, moving out of its apartheid state. It had come off of the ;‘\l
umphof the Second World War. Therhetoric of democracyandone world, the



72 Artist & Influence

United Nations and all that. It was in a mode of exploration of the new tech-
nologies that had come out of the Second World War that were now being
deployed into the industrial infrastructure. Everything looked very hope-
ful. In Britain and Europe the United States had done the Marshall Plan.
America was very optimistic.

There were some films doneonracerelations, one of them being LostBoun-
daries; there was also Intruder In The Dust, Home Of The Brave, Pinky,
Gentleman’s Agreement, addressing problems of discrimination, chiefly
against Blacksbutalso against Jews. The country itself wasina good mood.
Therewere peoplelike AdamClayton Powell, Jr., Paul Robeson,and A. Philip
Randolph all agitating for more equity and fairness in society and the body
politic which eventually led to the Supreme Court decision in 1954. There
was a kind of optimism that went diametrically against the apartheid-type
situations of black people. On the one hand, we were focusing on the posi-
tives that were in place in America at that time,butat the same time we were
being frustrated by this negative, oppressive, morbid absorption by white
America with the need to retain us in second-class citizenship status. That
wasthe Americathat]Julian, myself, Sidney werefacingand we were dialogu-
ing with each other on all of these paradoxes. I think that we all benefited
fromeachother.

Os'sie Davis? I knew Ossie but I didn’t hang out with Ossie at that time.
Ossie and Ruby had gotten married and had gone home. But Julian, Sidney
and myself were single and were runningaround. '

Running through all th 4 1 S
with Amfr ca. 8 at you've said, there seems to be g strong love-hate relationship

vlty' ?tupidit}’ andsavagery are notnowor
'Ve€of any one race and group of people.”
America in the most
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empowered psychologically, emotionally, philosophically and spiritually,
to move forward. You take the analogy of psychology; one has to become
aware of all the warts, one has to go through that dark tunnel of agony and
painof self discovery, of realizing thatyouaare therepository of tremendous
anger, rageand hostility and ugliness towardsyour parentsaswellasthe par-
ticipant in all of the wonderful happy moments that you’ve had with them
when you lived there, were moved by them, felt grateful to them, etc. Until
youaddress those issues within yourself, you are inno position to deal with
theoutside world ina productive, creative, constructive way.

My relationship to Americaisalongthoselines. Itis whatwe’vetried todo
with our films, to make films thatin some way nourishand enhance thelevel
of consciousness within the country and within ourselves as African
Americans, and trigger more positive responses to the future.

Do you have films for rent?
Yes, werentour filmsand videostoschools, colleges, business organizations,
libraries, cultural centers, government agencies and thelike.

The status of the producer and director, of the black producer-director in the last forty
years -- can you take us from that to now, to perhaps twenty years from now, of the black
producer-director?

Wehad that whole period, "the Oscar Micheaux period.” Micheaux, Spencer
Williams, Bill Alexander, Noble Johnson, and various others were doing
films for a captive black audience. There were about 1,200 theatres around
the country. Alotof white producers also werevery activein thisareaof ser-
vicing the black community with black film products. And then came In-
tegration which dismantled that network of distributionand exhibition. The
black producer went into an eclipse and a decline. Then out of that came
peoplelike myself, and chiefly myselfbecauseatone pointIwasthe only one
making films at the beginning of the 1950s and I was out of the country in
Canada. Butnothing really happened until the civildisorders of .the 1960s. 1
don’t even think Gordon Parks or Melvin Van Peebles were 1n place as
filmmakersat the start of the 1950s. Not until after these urban disorders al'nd
the civil rights demonstrations...the sit-ins and so on did black filmmaking
havearesurgence. '

With the legislation of Congress, all of that created a climate which was
much more affable to the emergence of black filmmakers. I came back to
America in 1963 and worked in U.N. television. That’s how I gotinto b!ack
television journalism which thenled to a greatnumber of peoplemovinginto
television. That was the beginning of black film peoplein filmon television
atthattime. With the National Endowment for the Arts and the H.umamtl.es,
the Corporation for Public Broadcasting and all of the new financial backing
from the Small Business Administration, thoseagencies and th'e US Govern:
menthad a wonderful program which made it possible for minority gr%l(li)
0wned companies to secure government contracts. It was called the A
Program. That program keptour company alive for years. Oneofthe reaspus
why we did not go bankrupt was because of the films we'made fcg VIGXSA
government departments like the Department for Education, HUD,! S
Department of Labor,etc. There were about five or six black companies
owed their existence for a protracted period of time to that program-
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During the television explosion of blacks in the media, Hollywood was
goinginto adeclinein terms of itsbox office grosses. In the processof analyz-
ing the causal factors involved in the decline, the marketing people in Hol-
lywood discovered that demographically there had been substantial shiftsin
the urban populations across the country. Thatin fact twenty, thirty, forty,
even fifty percent of some of the major markets were Black and Hispanic
markets. That gave rise to what is called the "blaxploitation” film. Films
began comingout of Hollywood that were targeted to this new market which
helped to bring Hollywood out of its economic doldrums. However, the
marketing analysislaterrevealed thatblack people would turn out to seemo-
tion picture products irrespective of whether or not blacks were in it or had
made it if those products contained certain types of theatrical elements.
Dynamics, if you will. If they were action, occult, mysterious, if they had
danger, suspense, sex, etc., then black audiences would go and see them. You

soyou’vereallygottoknow somebody who knows somebody to getintoHol-
lywood. Themogulsthere said, "Well, listen, whatarewe knockingourselves
out for making all these black films? We’ve got to hire all these black crews
an‘d talgnt. If'we make the "rightkind offilm,"black peoplewill cometoseeit,
Hispanics will come to seeit, all the Third World peoples in this country will
come to seeit. And all the white people will come to see it. We can even take

}tll.letse filmsand send themoverseas and they will makea fortune.” The restis
istory.

What about big box office hits like Eddie Murphy?

These are the kinds of films being tar eted a '
equation has come, onceagain, the%Blafk Comrilg"pTrﬁgHéf:ciog:z;ig}}tlc;;}:ls-
;voaggab:::ez::r;a]?r hitin America ever since the days of the minstrel show.
would eIkt glance that upgrading thatpersonintoa Hollywood product

€cause America likes to laugh at black people because of the

racismangle. Enou hofA i i e
— g mericalikes to laughatblack peopleto thinkofitin

Beyond that, because of thepressures

ars a L
presenceright now hasbeenylear Or whatever it is that ha makes. The black
lywood product, :
F);eedompor Augt)l dci)::,aSéonally more serious products are done like Cry

, >tory, b Y, we are woefully under-repre-
TPs in Hollywood. Idon’t think
kdirectors ang writers, maybe I'll
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give them three percent at this point. The percentage of black actorsis very,
very low in terms of playing major roles. In television the black presence is
better from the stand point of being in front of the camera and perhapsbehind
the camera as well. But look at the demographics of Los Angeles, whichisa
largely black, Asian and Hispanic community, so much so that you havea
black mayor; something like almost fifty percent of L.A.is Third World.

Ifyoulookattheemployment profileof the major studiosinHollywood,it’s
appalling. Tobe centered in the middle of a community where over fifty per-
centareblack, Hispanicand Asian, you have threeor four percent employed
in the unions. And on the managerial and decision-makinglevels, you have
less than one tenth of one percent. Ashley Boone, who was one of the major
figures in the strategizing and marketing of Star Wars and anumber of other
major films, is black. He is one of the few black executives operatingin Hol-
lywood and he is not even operating now. I just read an article called
"Hollywood’s Dirty Little Secret,” published in Premiere Magazine, in
which they said that in the recounting of the history of the particular studio
where he was one of the major executives, he isnoteven mentioned. That’s
howbad itisin Hollywood.

Right now we are talking about Spike Lee and Robert Townsend. Yes, it's
wonderful but Spike Lee is only one guy. This is dreadful! If there are two
hundred operating directorsin Hollywood atleast twenty of themshould be
black. If America were operatinginitsmost egalitariansense, shornofitshis-
toricalencumbrances, there should be at least twenty percent of the congress
thatare people of color. )

Spike Lee is certainly now in a position to presenta project to a studio and
make a deal with them. He could conceivably evensetupa limited partner-
ship outside of the studio and raise money privately. He could set‘ up a
limited partnership with thirty-three partners and finance a productionin
thatway. Buthe’s onlyoneofhiskind and the unhappyfactisthat thereareall
these wonderfully talented, young, black filmmakers. )

There’san organization cailed The Black Filmmaker Foundation whichhas
something like one hundred talented, black filmmakers whoare desperately
trying to get money and funding to do various things. The bulk of their
financing is coming from their membership. You would think that Eddie
Murphy orRichard Pryorwould havelongago done something for them. But
they don‘t do that. I personally feel that a lot of our stars and other wealthy
people suffer from the slave mentality that we were talkingabout earlier.

Would you believe this characterup in Canada, Ben Johnson, they ff)und all
these steroids in him? And he has a $250,000 car!! Whatan obscenity! The
thing that’s so beautiful about the Jewish and the [talian communities1s the

factthat they really and truly treasure their talent and history, they foster it.

The Japanese treasure their talent and history. You are not going to go
ence that is developing

anywhere without a value placed upon the intellig - !
“,”th_i“ yoursociety. If Americaallows itself to tumbleinto this terrll‘l:l(:i Sl;tuaiii
tionineducation, and it is getting worse, we are going to be outflan enitiyes
these other countries who really value the genius within theircommu 0
You were talking about, in one of your papers, seeing the Third World, India, as @
market for filmmakers.
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Sure. Ithink the Third World isa natural market for black Americansbecause
the Third World is very zeroed in on America, in terms of the black com-
munity here. While we might notbe aware of it, they are very much aware of
America’s black population and they assess America by how we are treated
here. They know just about what to expect when Americans come over to
make theirdeals, they filter what the white American is sayingopposite what
they know ishappeninghere. I think that thereisalively interestin the Third
World about the black community that we, from a commercial pointof view,
certainly cantap. And because wedo getsomuchattention there.

Unfortunately we as black peopledon’t think comimercially in terms of the
Third World. The Third World really doesn’t think that intently in terms of
having commercial relationships with African Americans because nothing
they have seen in the media has told them thatweareinany way commercial-
ly viable. The curious thing is that America in the twenty-first century hasa
majoradvantagein havingresident within itsbord ersthe African American,
becauseheorsheisanatural bridgeto this Third World market whichisgoing
tobecome progressively competitive.

AsKorea, China, Taiwan, HongKong, Japan, India, the Eu ropean Common
Market and the Soviet Unjon become progressively economically and com-

gf’l;lzeor?clznz.mfortunate thing is that it seems that Black America suffers from being
I'think we should be American. Idon’t thi
from white Am tthink we need to separate ourselves

erica when we gooverseas. Buton i
. o eof the things that we have
to be clear about is that we are African Americans and we stigll have a lotof

struggle and work to do here in Amerj : "
posedtobe. Thatis reality. catomake it the democracy it's sup-

1 guess I didn't say it right, What I . ,
about work and hystle, <7S)hich is very”.'lﬁefr:;trz?g:rsl bociuse we are American we have ethics

That goes with the te
munity the greatest |
various opportunitieg around of pej

G ) o sac pain and suffering, which is something
Plague. Itig unknown in A i
very poorand the unlucky. 7 merica exceptfor the
Black Americans have sy

ffered tremendously and I

througha periog of "restand Tecuperation,"

g
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of people. We are in danger of it being our Waterloo in the twenty-first cen-
tury.

But we also went through slavery and it is time to enjoy something.
That's right and the irony is that that is true but that’s not the reality. It’s
doubtful that White America is going to give us ten trillion dollarsinrepara-
tions due us, valid though that idea may be. If you were to mathema tically
compute and sit down from Day One of the arrival of the first African slave
andrunitup onacomputer up to 1989 and you take the going wages foreach
decadeand moveitthroughthenumbersofslaveshere,youcanarriveatafig-
urethat would boggle your mind, of unpaid laborin trillions of dollars. Alot
of very intelligent white Americans don’t want to deal with that fact of
slavery and mathematics. They don’t even want to hear about that because
they know what the ramificationsare. I think thatrealistically we will never
beable to "collect that money,” especially with the cosmic dynamic of human
greed running so wild in the world today.

The Great Society of Johnson was an attempt to somehow address certain
grievances but the costs of the Vietnam War and the escalating costs of run-
ningasociety began to mitigate against the possibility of America pursuing
thatkind of guilt money. Even those whites who know about the debtdon’t
want to relate to it, much less pay it. I think that our problem as African
Americans is never to forget our slave history but also never to get bogged
down in the history of the horrors of slavery too deeply because we become
very depressed, morbid, very hateful. Our problemis to tap only asmuchof
these horrors that we need for strength and inspiration, to try and see what
wecandotoimpact today’ssituation.

Weshould stress the voting and economic thing and look to the futt'lre and
try to learn lessons from the Korean community, the Jewish community, etc.
Try to learn from these other minority groups who have managed to fxgure
outand find ways to move forward without losing the creative, artisticand
cultural powerand potential we have achieved to date. )

Realistically speaking, therehasbeena sustained vilification campal'gn tar-
geted onus whichno other minority group in thiscountry really experiences.
Otherpeople say, "Why can’tyou be likethe Koreansor the Jews?" TheJewsin
this country have their own religion, their language, a preserved history
where we don’tenjoy that.
[tseems to me that, asa people, we must continue to be vigilant, to beon Ot
§Ookout foranti-Black propaganda which aboundsin thiscountry. Mostofit
issoinsidiousit catches you off-guard. It’simportantto keepinmind that tge
Primary concern of the American popular media is not the welfare of the
African-American community -- it’s money. More often than nqt, 1’n acon-
Sumer-based economy like ours, that means panderingto hufn.anlty s ba,STISt
Instincts. If the society happens to be racist, it's bad for minorities, especia ly
thf? most vulnerable ones. It is sometimes difficult for us as black peop e_
Within this society to recognize the strategies directed againstusand the (1:\(Imr
stantly changing formsin which various negativeimagesare pres.ented- x? d
ire W;e1 always fully aware of the psychological power of these images a

OWthey cripple our thinking and actions.

Tue, we as speOple have Shysically survived a four-h.undred-'yealrislgﬁg
olocaust on this continent. Butmy guessis thatour phySICal surviva
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to the racial genius, the conscious and unconscious memory of our pre-
slavery experience. Our collective psyche is probably still programmed by
the various spiritual and intellectual achievements of the outstanding
civilizations of Africa, civilizations whose cultures stretch back into the fur-
thest reaches of antiquity. Ethiopia and Egypt are merely the tip of that
remarkable cultural iceberg we call the Black Experience. Having said that,
wenow have to get on with the business of creating a viable and productive
psychological environment for ourselves today, and tomorrow. We can’tjust
patourselves on the back for having physically survived a four-centuries-
long holocaust, spectacular though that may be. We must learn how to con-
vert, use, and effectively exploit our past and current adversities for our
culturalevolutionin this society. Asfilmmakersand producers, itisourtask
toempowerourselvesin the powerful electronic mediaasother groupshave
done. We need to do this in order to develop a supportive cultural environ-
ment forourselves, while enriching thelarger American culture of which we
areapart.

How do we do this?

ifwedon’tdevelopamore sophisticated critica] sense, we may find ourselves

in a new kind of slavery -- psychologi
dangerous form than physicapl zlaver(;.glcal and mental NGy Ea

So, to repeat myself, we b
must be careful about what we
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SELECTED FILMS AND VIDEOS

PRODUCED AND DIRECTED BY WILLIAM GREAVES
between the years of 1958 and 1990

Resurrections: Paul Robeson one-hour television pilot for cable, starring

MosesGunn 1990

ATribute to Jackie Robinson 18-minute vidertape for The Jackie Robinson

Foundation 1990

Ida B, Wells: A Passion for Justice one-hour film for "The American Ex-

perience” public TV series (WGBH), with Toni Morrison on camera 1989

That's Black Entertainment 60-minute videotape produced by Skyline

Entertainment 1989

The Deep North one-hour television program on racism for WCBS 1988

Black Power in America: Myth or Reality? one-hour film for TV funded by

the Corporation for Public Broadcasting, with Franklin Thomas, Clifton

Wharton, Jr., Dr. Mary Berry, Arthur Ashe, Mayor Tom Bradley, Eleanor Hol-

mesNorton, Don King 1986

Take the Time 16-minute film for The American Cancer Society, with

Phylicia Rashad 1987

Golden Goa 40-minute film for the Government of India 1986

Fighter For Freedom 18-minute film of Frederick Douglass for the National

Park Service 1985

Frederick Douglass: An American Life 30-minute film for the National Park

Service 1984

APlan for all Seasons 40-minute film for Social Security Adminis

withBobHope and Marie Osmond 1983

NoTime for Privacy 16mmfilmfor The American Cancer Society,

Belafonte 1983

Booker T, Washingten: The Life and the Legacy 30-min

tional Park Service, with Maurice Woods and Al Freeman,

?gsalce for Women 30-minute film for NASA, narrated by Ricar

Bustin’Loose feature film for Universal Pictures,

CecilyTyson 1981

Where Dreams Come True 30-minute film for NASA, narra

Montalban 1979

InSearch of Pancho Villa 15-minute film for Anthony

S&Portunities in Criminal Justice 35-minute film for

8ue, narrated by Bill Cosby 1978 .y

ationtime; Garyy90-minuteyfi1rn on the First National Black POhtlca%)C.ons-

;’;%ion, with Jesse Jackson, Amiri Baraka, Richard Hatcher, Charles Digg

tration,
withHarry

ute film for the Na-

Jr. 1982
do Montalban

starring Richard Pryor and

ted by Ricardo

Quinn 1978
The National Urban

Just Doin’ 1 30-minute pilot for TV series funded by the Corporation for

elevision 1974
hin
"omThese Roots 30-minute film for The Schomburg Center for Researchl

Black Culture, narrated by Brock Peters, music by Eubie Blake 1974
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Whose Standard English? 24-minute film for Dillary University 1974
Power Vs. the People 36-minute film for Equal Employment Opportunity
Commission 1973

OnMerit 23-minute film for the Civil Service Commission, narrated by Ruby
Dee 1972

Voice of La Raza 40-minute film for the Equal Opportunity Commission,
with Anthony Quinn 1972

Ali, TheFighter feature-length 35mm documentary film for Guts, Inc., with
Muhammad Aliand Joe Frazier 1971

The Fight of the Champions 35mm short on the first Ali-Frazier fight for
Perenchio-Cook 1971

Choice of Destinies one-hour television special for WNBC, with Leon Bibb
1970

Black Journal twenty ho ur-long programs for the National Educational
Television series 1968-70

Inthe Company of Men one-hour film for Newsweek 1969

Take One 90-minute 35mm experimental feature 1968

StillaBrother: Inside the NegroMiddle Class 90-minute television special
forNationalEducationalTelevision 1968

The First World Festival of Negro Arts 40-minute film for USIA 1966
Wealthof aNation 25-minute film for USIA 1964

Cleared for Takeoff 16mm film for UN Television, with Alistair Cooke 1963
Emergency Ward 30-minute filmfor the National Film Board of Canada 1958



William Greaves and Sadie Brown Amparadoin ascene from Garden of Timeby Owen Dodson as
produced by the American Ne gro Theater, 1945.



